West Hertfordshire Hospitals NHS

NHS Trust

Part 1 Board Meeting

Thursday 27 September 2012

MINUTES

Present:
A N

Thomas Hanahoe Chairman (TH) i,
Jan Filochowski Chief Executive (JF) “
Katharine Charter Non Executive Direc
Sarah Connor \
Mahdi Hasan
Chris Green v

Robin Douglas
Colin Johnston
Anna Anderson
Natalie Forrest
Chris Pocklington

In attendance:
Patricia Duncan
Mark Vaughan
Paul Jenkins
Louise Gaffney
Elizabeth Ri

Apol
Phil

send

cutive Director

Agenda
Item

Action

1.

Chai tro n

TH opene meeting noting it was JF’s last prior to his taking up
his post with Great Ormond Street Hospital Foundation Trust. The
Chair, on behalf of the Board thanked JF for the significant
contribution he had made to the Trust and for his leadership in the
achievements made since he joined in 2007.

JF responded that he had enjoyed working with the Trust and that it
had been a pleasure to work with so many committed staff. The
Chair wished JF well in his new post.




The Chair confirmed that the recruitment process had begun and
interviews would be held during November and that NF had been
appointed to the interim post until a substantive appointment was
made. The Chair further confirmed that Maxine McVey had been
appointed as Interim Director of Nursing.

The Chair noted the very positive feedback on Trust performance,
received from the SHA and included in the papers.

The Chair then reflected on a recent visit by Anna Soubre inister
of State for Health, with Richard Harrington, MP. They

different departments within the hospital and were bri on the
Watford Campus Project. The Minister expresse

dWrt to the
Trust in this initiative. L d

h A

A4

ive unqualified™
rds of the Care Q

The Chair noted that the Trust continued t
registration with the safety and quality s
Committee.

The Chair reflected also on the recent A
which received the highest ever recorded a e by members of
the public.

The Chair congratulated the D
department for an initiative that
Health Service Journal awards for engagemer e Chair
also noted th ' ation under the
‘Healthy A ’ stan by the Strategic Health Authority.

The Chai d the co ing high demand for the Trust’s
emergency ices iderable work under way to resolve

d that the format of the Board meetings
er with the public session, part 1
closed session, part 2 would be held

\

The Chair announced two changes to Committee membership. He
advised that KC had stepped down as Vice Chair and thanked her
for her support during her tenure. The Chair proposed MH for the
position and this was seconded by NF and CG. The Board
unanimously supported the nomination and MH was elected as Vice
Chair. It was also noted that SC would relinquish her position on the
Remuneration Committee to reduce her already extensive committee
commitments and that the Chairman would become a member of the
Finance Committee.

Board
Decision: To
approve the
nomination of
MH as Vice
Chair.




Declarations of Interest
None declared.

Minutes Action: Co

KC was present. Sec to

SC advised the amendments required at the previous meeting were | amend.

not accurately represented. Otherwise the minutes were accepted

as accurate.

Matters Arising

AA Confirmed that Dr David Gaunt had been appointed a‘

Clinical lead in the implementation of the IT Strategy in le of

Associate Medical Director, IT.

PJ confirmed that the Board of the UCL Acade

Centre had approved the Trust’s request to | Action: NF
to include

PJ confirmed that 89% of staff had recei
Information Governance and the Tru
the target at the year end.

andatory training in

Survey of Services and the he results of
these would be included in t [ ort scheduled
for the November Board.

A N
outcomes of
on trajectory to achieve and DS

‘surveys in
November’s
Patient
Experience
report.

Chief Executive’s Briefing
y -

JF noted the
the Trust
budget that the Trust continued to
perform g erformance, lower
infection co ing. ti nd higher standards of
patient.safety

eport and confirmed the appointment of Kier as
Partner, based on a bid that demonstrated
partnership and sustainability as key guiding principles. LG noted a
Campus Agreement would be signed.

Integrated Performance Report, together with PMR self
certification

PJ took the Board through the key headlines of this report and
current performance. It was noted that the current position was a
disappointment but that a number of actions were in train and were
captured in LG’s paper at item 10.




PJ noted the deteriorating position with regard to A&E performance
but that this was within the context of a growth in admissions of 6%,
ytd, although outpatient attendances were less than plan for both
elective and non elective. CP reiterated the importance of the
reconfiguration work in taking forward new models of care in
partnership with key agencies.

Finance Report, including Getting Better

NF noted the summary in the Finance Report and was pleased to
report a step change in Divisional commitment durinﬁ
August, with some £6.6m of plans in place compare .2m to the
same period in the previous year. - N

CP, AA and NF were jointly directing the dev
plans with Divisions and NF confirmed th
that the original target plan remained a

AA noted the strong drivers for chang

continue to be driven by the Executive
Musson who would take up post as GB Pro

October. k

AA confirmed that all cost im em re assessed
for their impact on quality and e ass [
the PCT. p -

KC noted t [ pear to be confirmed and NF

advised w e next meeting of the
Board. A ed that
previous ye

e at £1m higher than in the

ery from RD on support for the funding of the
ed that confirmation of the PCT’s contribution
2d but indications were it would be in the region

RD also noted with concern the spike in the costs of temporary staff
and MV advised this was partly attributable to accruals in invoicing
and the impact of staff leaving and not being immediately replaced.

10.

Service Reconfiguration

LG briefed the Board on the programme of work being taken forward
under the auspices of a recently established group which would
direct a multi-faceted improvement programme involving both
internal reconfiguration and external engagement to address issues.
LG took the Board through the work underway to address capacity




issues which included a re-design of some pathways. She
presented data showing year on year increases in emergency
attendances (although paediatric attendances were similar to the
previous year). LG noted there were implications for the patient
experience in managing these rises, including an increase in
patients being discharged to home from the ICU rather than being
transferred to step down acute care. LG noted the introduction of
ambulatory care which although treating 20 patients per day was not
sufficient to mitigate the increase in demand.

A,

The Board discussion focused on ambulance attendff
referrals and the acuity of patients and CJ noted tha eting was
scheduled with the ambulance service and the Pcnder
trends and possible solutions. e

RD noted the multi dimensional approach

incorporated internal proce
addressed across the patie
social care partners.

11.

the Board had an

place reported in the

12 (item 11 (i)) He

s of clostridium difficile had been reported

ses in the previous year to date. The risk of

ed by the root cause analysis of incidents which
processes of care were appropriate.

the Trust was liaising with the Health Protection Agency and that the
SHA were supportive of the actions in place. RD asked if the Trust
had considered commissioning an independent investigation and CJ
confirmed that the Trust had commissioned the Health Protection
Agency. MH was reassured that the Trust’s RCA process found no
evidence of cross infection but asked if the Trust was able to
compare trends with other Trusts and CJ confirmed this would be
undertaken with the HPA.




CJ provided the Board with a summary of the processes of risk
assessing patients. RD observed there were two aspects to
consider (i) is the Trust doing all possible to reduce hospital acquired
infection? and (ii) are there implications wider than the Trust?

CJ reiterated that the Trust had reviewed its practice and the only
issue in regard to infection control processes that could not be fully
addressed related to current pressures. CJ noted the problems in
accessing some wards to deploy the Sterinis clean as wards must be
vacated do to this. CP noted this was inevitable with thewnt
95% occupancy rate.

The Chair noted the progress outlined in the Annn but
concluded that whilst infection control practice remednthere
were issues to address.
‘
0

MH requested that the Board is apprise
findings from the HPA review and CJ

y ‘by exception’

A ©

Action: CJ to
advise of any
‘by exception’
findings from
the HPA
review.

12.

Board Assurance Framework

CJ mtroduced the summary report, the app ving been made

reduced bec
down time i issues raised, the Chair
ept the current position.

13.

14.

2port which recorded the serious incidents
evious meeting and the actions in place to
om these and previous serious incidents. CJ
irm to the Board that the Trust had had 12

a never event. The Board approved the report.

15.

CQC 6 Monthly Report

CJ reported that the Trust remained compliant with CQC outcomes
for quality and safety and that he and NF, with PD had met the new
local assessor and manager who advised CQC had no concerns and
no issues had been raised.

16.

Quality Account — Quarter 1 Progress Report

NF introduced this report noting that good progress was being made




against the Trust’s quality priorities. NF noted that progress in
reducing caesarian sections was affected by the prevalence of a
cohort of women who chose to have a section, despite there being
no clinical need and their being apprised of the risks. The Board
agreed choice was important but that more work was needed to
reduce the number of emergency caesarian sections.

17.

Making Every Contact Count — Implementation Plan

NF introduced this paper noting this initiative was in its early stages
but that it was important that Board members supported the -
aspirations in the plan. NF noted this was also a CQUI et. The
Chair on behalf of the Board welcomed this importanﬂe to
utilize opportunities to address health promotion o ies to
patients during routine health consultations or a ions

endorsed the Implementation Plan. N

18.

Unannounced LINks Inspections

NF introduced this summary of findi

October.

19.

Report of Integrated Risk and Gove
13 September 2012

20.

The Chair of th ittee, : 1d there were no
questions rai

Report of inance ittee Meeting 13 September 2012
The Ch&oted
review of th tl

nented on an extensive
ime and a review of the

mittee had asked for a 2 year rolling
agreed. NF noted that this would be a
ramme Director, Guy Musson. LG

21.

oncern that the Gifts and Hospitality Policy was not
currently being monitored because of a resource issue and the
Committee believed it was important to ensure there was sufficient
resource to support implementation of key control policies.

MV noted he had met with PD to discuss the way forward and that a
new member of staff would be joining the Secretariat. SC noted the
outcome of the annual review of Audit Committee effectiveness and
that the Committee had approved draft objectives for approval by the

Board
Decision:
The Board
approved the
objectives for
the Audit
Committee.

Chair: To
consider the
advantage of
objectives for




Board. The Board approved the Audit Committee objectives and SC | all Board
advised she would provide an end of year report on progress. SC committees.
asked that the Board consider the development of objectives for all
Board committees. The Chair agreed to give this further
consideration.

22. Report of the Strategy Committee Meeting
CG noted his report and the focus of discussions and noted the
forthcoming Strategy Away Day which would involve Divisional
Directors. He noted that Directors had been asked toi;
implementation plans to sit behind the strategy.

23. Report from the Chair of the Charitable Funds ‘ee
KC noted the Committee had met prior to th
signed off the annual accounts which stoo 1.5m at year e
She noted the funds spent £700K whic sented an 80% Action: PD
increase in expenditure on the previ i \1raft letter
proportion was spent on ward based i nvite for
realized income of £450K. KC noted rec i [ representation
fund-holders to ensure spending plans wer e to utilize funds | to be signed
and to ensure there was be ili e disposition of by CJ.
funds donated. KC indicated she wo to develop
communications to support th ER to
develop some communications e was
resistance to to ing funds a d the nmittee was
currently with c
JCCtoinv

24. Patient

y concerns they had that
. There were no concerns raised and the
icated the Board was satisfied with actions

25.

episode of care as an in-patient he was pleased to report that the
food served was of a high standard.

Bus Services — On requesting an update LG responded she
awaited a response from the Council but that the Trust had no
influence on bus services.

Health Campus — Mr. Appel noted a concern about the extra traffic
that would result and was advised that there were plans to upgrade




the car parking facilities on site ahead of the construction of the new
road.

AAA — Mr. Appel was concerned that his comments relating to this
issue at the previous meeting may have been misleading.

Car Parking — Mr. Appel noted there continued to be concern at car
parking charges.

Ward Visits

N

The Chair noted that the visits had focused on two af
catheter laboratory and a surgical ward. KC noted s S very
impressed with the facilities at the catheter lab an ices
provided but was concerned that the current pre@s h ated

problems for the service.

ER noted that the visit to the surgical w
ambulatory care facility. The Divisio
presented his thoughts on possible so
management of patients admitted to sur
pathway.

All Board members agreed the format
time to discuss issues with cli
insight into key issues and ho

n sﬁggested
S anmm agreed to

Chair welcomed the:engageme
this format s for fut
this.

AOB
There being‘ﬂheLﬁh sed the meeting.

: 29 Nov 12 at 09.00 hours in
C, WGH (part 1 at 09.00 to 12.00 hrs. Part




